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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the final result of the Group for the 9-month period ended

31 December 2005.

I am pleased to inform that the Group has been turned around into profitable during the period and recorded

a net profit of HK$38 million, the first profitable year since year ended 31 March 1998. The outstanding

performance was a result of the management’s efforts in shifting the Group’s business focus from leather

trading to Macau hotel and entertainment industry and property investments.

With the return of the sovereignty of Macau to the PRC, the economy of this city has been growing healthily.

GDP increased from MOP55 billion in 2002 to MOP93 billion in 2005. Fixed asset investment increased by

57% as compared with 2004 while the unemployment rate dropped from 6% in 2003 to 4% in 2005.

Currently, the Group’s only net profit contributor is Hotel Golden Dragon (Macao) Co. Ltd. The opening of

the casino operating rights has resulted the world’s top casino operators to build new resorts to lure big-

spending tourists from the mainland and aboard into Macau, Golden Dragon will definitely be benefited by

this influx of tourists.

In August 2005 and February 2006, the Group announced the acquisition of two properties located in

Macau City and Taipa, Macau respectively with a total site area of over 5,500 sq. m. This became the first

lot of land bank owned by the Group. The Board expects that the demand for good quality properties in

Macau will continue to grow. We are considering to develop/re-develop the sites to tap into the middle class

income group housing buyers. With the private consumption expenditure increased from 4.5% p.a. in 2002

to 7.5% p.a. in 2005; and the increasing applications from the “Investors Residency Scheme” whose

applicants are more readily to select the property investment stream, the Board believes that there will be a

steady demand for good quality properties in Macau.

Although there are a number of large conglomerates from Hong Kong interested to invest in the property

market in Macau competing for the scared land resources, I believe that the Group is in a better position

over these conglomerates in the Macau property market because certain members of the Board have been

in the Macau property market for over 30 years and having prominent positions in the Macau society. They

know the Macau property market well. With these advantages, the Group has positioned itself to be a

developer of high quality commercial/residential properties in Macau.

For those business sectors of the Group which have not yet been making contributions to the Group, the

Board will take appropriate actions at due course with an aim to maximize the shareholders’ value.

The Group’s financial position has been becoming healthy. The Company has in March 2006 completed

placing 400 million new shares and raised HK$59 million which will be applied as to financing the development

of the above mentioned property projects and to the general working capital of the Group. Moreover, Hotel

Golden Dragon contributes a steady income to the Group of approximately HK$80 million per annum. With

the continuing growth in the Macau property market, the Group will look for investment opportunities which

will bring profits to the shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement

I have two beliefs: to win the trust of others, one must be a totally honest people; and to be a successful

person, one must work very hard. I trust that the Group’s business development will build on these two

beliefs and sooner or later, Honesty Treasure will become a very successful corporate both in Macau and

Hong Kong.

I would like to take this opportunity to act on behalf of the Board and the Company to express our gratitude

towards our staff for their dedication and valuable contributions during the past year.

Pedro Chiang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 April 2006
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

The name of the Company has been changed from “Pearl Oriental Enterprises Limited 東方明珠實業有限公

司 ” to “Honesty Treasure International Holdings Limited 信寶國際控股有限公司” with effect from 7 October

2005. The change of company name would allow the Company to carry on its business under a separate

identity and benefit its future business developments.

CHANGE OF YEAR END DATE

Following the acquisition of a 40% interest in Hotel Golden Dragon (Macao) Company Limited (“Golden

Dragon”), the Board anticipated the profit contribution by Golden Dragon to be significant as compared to

the other businesses of the Group. Accordingly, the Company changed its year end date from 31 March to

31 December to be in coterminous with that of Golden Dragon.

RESULTS

For the 9 months period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005, the Group reported a turnover of HK$74

million when compared with HK$207 million for the year ended 31 March 2005, a drop of 53% from the 9-

month correspondence period. The decrease was mainly due to partial change of sales channels of the

leather business through consignment sales to earn commission income in order to reduce the operation

cost. Net profit reached HK$38 million (year ended 31 March 2005: loss of HK$108 million). The profitability

was mainly contributed from share of results of associate, Hotel Golden Dragon, and after written off the

goodwill of approximately HK$30 million in relation to the healthcare business. During the period under

review, the directors took a prudence approach on the preparation of financial statements and provision for

impairment loss for intangible assets of HK$30,160,000 was made. Earnings per share for the period is 1.78

cents (year ended 31 March 2005 : Loss per share : 8.85 cents).

Business review & prospects

The Company is primarily an investment holding company and its investment portfolio includes (i) hotel and

real estate investments; (ii) property development; (iii) trading, distribution and retailing of leather products;

and (iv) healthcare and medical-related business.

Hotel and entertainment business

Golden Dragon (including Hotel Golden Dragon and Sunny Tourist) is a major investment of the Group. Its

operating results for the period were promising and satisfactory. It contributed a substantial part of the

income to the Group, which was the reason contributed to turning around the Group into profitable for the

first time since 1998. For the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005, the turnover of Golden Dragon

was HK$325 million while the average occupancy rate reached 86%. The share of results from associates

during the same period amounted to HK$86 million.

The opening of the entertainment business in Macau has brought in international operators and market

players into Macau. This has not just only put Macau into an international business platform drawing the

attention of global investors, but also pushed the growth of GDP in Macau. The growth in business of Macau

has also driven the demand for good quality hotel services. The Board believes that with the openings of

additional international hotels, plus the expanding PRC’s “Individual Visit Scheme”, Macau will become an

important business and entertainment centre in the Asian region, and Golden Dragon will definitely be

benefited from these.
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Property Development

Tap Siac, Macau (澳門塔石街 )

In August 2005, the Group, through a subsidiary (in which the Group owns 51% and the remaining 49%

owned by independent third parties) acquired a single seven storey block building located at nos. 1-13 da

Rua do Tap Siac, Macau, for investment purpose. The Board is considering the future development strategy

of the property with reference to the property market condition and prospects in Macau. During the period

under review, no income, profit or loss was recorded from the property. Decoration work has not yet been

commenced.

The site is located in the centre of Macau city, close to Horta E Costa and Conselheiro Ferreira de Almeida,

an area which is easily assessable by transports and is surrounded by famous shopping arcades. The

nearby Tap Siac Concourse with an area of 8,000 sq. m. will be completed in late 2006/early 2007 where a

6-floor shopping arcade will be constructed on the concourse. Upon its completion, the area will become

another landmark in Macau for tourists and local consumers. The property prices in the Tap Siac region has

been increased by 40% as compared with 2004.

Cheok Ka Chun, Taipa, Macau (澳門蕌仔卓家村 )

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, in February 2006, the Group announced the acquisition of a 55%

interest in a Macau company which holds a development site located at Lote TN6, Cheok Ka Chun, Taipa,

Macau. The site, a private land, has an area of about 4,661 sq. m. The Group intends to develop the site

into a 50s floors residential property with a shopping arcade.

The site is located in the northern part of Taipa and is surrounded by the University of Macau, and Greek

Mythology. The site was originally a village but the Macau Government has recently approved to redevelop

the region into a commercial and residential area. The property prices in the region has since then increased

by 50% - 60%. Taipa was used to be a low density populated area, as compared with the Macau city. With

the improvement in the transportation infrastructure in Taipa and the growth of the economy of Macau,

people will be looking for good quality housing area, and Taipa will be a site most suitable for developing

properties for high demand people. The Group will evaluate carefully these factors in designing a development

plan for the project in Taipa and making it another landmark in the area.

With the continuing growth of Macau’s economy as well as the property market, the Group will continue to

identify quality potential development projects which will increase the investment return for the Group.

Leather trading and retail business

During the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005, the Group’s turnover in leather trading and retail

business was HK$72 million (for the year ended 31 March 2005: HK$200 million). The decrease of 52% as

compared to the previous corresponding period of 9 months was mainly due to partial change of sales

channels of the Group’s leather business through consignment sales to earn commission income in order to

reduce the operating cost.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

One of the Group’s subsidiaries operates a retail business in ladies handbags and leather products under

the brand “Mocca”. During the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005, the Group opened three

retail shops in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2005, the Group has a total of 5 retail shops in Hong Kong

and Macau. The Board has been carefully monitoring the development of the business of leather trading and

retail business and appropriate actions will be taken at due course to stream line the business of the Group.

Health care business

During the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005, the health care business recorded a turnover of only

HK$1.5 million (year ended 31 March 2005: HK$8 million), mainly because the product Kenitic Electromagnetic

Therapy Instrument failed to tap into the high-end consumer market through direct sales channels. The Board

has been closely monitoring the development of its health care business and evaluating the effects to the results

of the Group. The Group continues to receive RMB100,000 per month from a clinical centre in Haikou People’s

Hospital on leasing a HIFU-bases ultrasound tumour therapy system to the centre.

Future Plans

The Group wishes that by capitalizing on the executive directors’ vast social connections and ample trading

experiences, the Group will be able to further expand its businesses, to identify quality new projects with

potential development opportunities and to bring in enormous investment returns for the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2005, the Group employed about 63 full-time staff in Hong Kong, 8 in Macau and 3 in

the PRC. The Group remunerates employees based on their performance, experience and prevailing industry

practices. It also offers benefits such as training programme to staff to enhance their sense of loyalty.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Fund-raising Activities

During the period under review, the Group successfully placed new shares and warrants and raised

approximately HK$26 million. Out of the proceeds from these fund-raising activities, HK$10 million have

been used to expand the ladies shoes retail business, and HK$5 million was used as general working capital

of the Group.

Besides, 400.2 million new shares at a price of HK$0.35 per shares (totally HK$140.07 million) have been

issued as the settlement of the shortfall to the consideration payable for the acquisition of Golden Dragon.

Liquidity and Financial Analysis

As at Balance Sheet date, the Group’s financial position with cash on hand recording at HK20 million. Total

liabilities amounted to HK$139 million as at 31 December 2005, with gearing ratio (as calculated by total

liabilities dividing by net asset value) recorded at 23%. Backed by this healthy financial position, the Group is

ready to set off and grasp the opportunities ahead.

The Directors believe that a substantial part of the short term liabilities, mainly amount due to minority

shareholders and bank loans obtained for the acquisition of property for development, will be renewable

automatically upon their respective due dates. The Group intends to finance the construction cost of the

property under development from bank loans.
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Contingent Liabilities

At the balance sheet date, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities (31 March 2005: Nil).

Pledge of Assets

Details of the pledge of assets of the Group during the review period are set out in Note 37 to the

accompanying financial statements.

Exchange Exposure

The Group’s transactions were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, MOP and Reminbi. Given that the

exchange rate of Hong Kong dollars against the MOP and Reminbi has been and likely remains stable, the

Board consider that the Group’s risk on foreign exchange will remain minimal. The Group had no foreign

exchange rate hedging arrangement during the period.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities during the period under review.

PROSPECT OF THE GROUP

We are very confident in the future prospect of Macau’s property market, given that it is the Macau

government’s firm commitment to develop Macau into a world-class tourism and entertainment centre. In

view of the continuous growth in the disposal income of Macau people and the influx of immigrants into

Macau, the demand for good quality housing will be enormous. The management of the Group has exceptional

outstanding property investment experience which will equip them to identify prosperous investment

opportunities for the benefits of the Group. It is the long term strategy of the Group to identify suitable

development projects for its land bank reserve.

As the Group has already acquired two properties development projects on hand, in the near future, the

Group will be concentrating in designing development plans for these two projects and to commence

construction works as soon as possible. It is permitted in Macau to pre-sale properties once a permit to

commence construction work is obtained, the Group will therefore be able to have returns on its investment

in an early stage and the income generated will then be reinvested in other projects. As a property developer,

the Group is always ready to consider potential investment opportunities in the PRC and the South East Asia

region.

Due to the difficulties in the leather trading business being faced by the industry in recent years, the Group

will have to further streamline its business in this segment. At the same time, the Group is considering to

enter into property sale market which will bring in speedy income to the Group. Contributions from the

property development market though is substantial, it normally takes years to complete a project. Property

sale market provides a steady income to the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has adopted its own code on corporate governance practices which incorporates all the code

provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “Code

on Corporate Governance Practices”) during the period under review. In compliance with the code provision

A.4.2, the amendments to the Company’s Articles were passed in the 2005 annual general meeting of the

Company which was held on 25 August, 2005. The Company’s Articles was amended to the effect that

every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at

least once every three years.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied throughout the period under review with the code

provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices with the following deviation:

Code A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors (including independent non-executive directors) should

be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. The term of office for non-executive directors

and independent non-executive directors are not specific but are subject to retirement by rotation at least

once every three years at the annual general meeting but are eligible for re-appointment.

As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s

corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those in the Code.

The Board is charged with overseeing the business and affairs of the Group that aims at enhancing the

Company’s value to shareholders.

The Board serving the important function of guiding the management, currently comprises:

(a) eight executive directors, namely Mr Chiang Pedro (Chairman), Mr Law Kar Po (Vice Chairman),

Mr. Wu Ka I, Miguel (Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Hoi Man Pak, Mr. Ung Choi Kun, Mr. Lee Sam

Yuen, John, Ms Law Wing Yee, Wendy and Ms. Lee Siu Yuk, Eliza;

(b) two non-executive directors Mr Alves, Leonel Alberto and Mr. Chui Sai Cheong; and

(c) three independent non-executive directors (“lNEDs”) required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules,

namely Mr. Lau Wai Ming, Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse and Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph whom

represent approximately 23% of the Board. Two INEDs are having appropriate professional

qualifications, accounting and related financial expertise required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing

Rules.

The Company considers that the Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for discharging

their duties as Directors in the best interest of the Company and that the current board size is adequate for

its present operations.

Each of the Directors keeps abreast of his/her responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the

conduct, business activities and development of the Company. All Directors are updated from time to time

with development in the laws and regulations applicable to the Company and each of the INEDs has made

annual confirmation that he complied with the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Directors consider that all the three INEDs are independent under these independence criteria and are

capable to effectively exercise independent judgment.



10

Corporate Governance Report
Honesty Treasure

International
Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2005

The Directors as aforesaid, accompanied by their respective biographical detail, are listed in the section of

Directors and Senior Management in this annual report and that the INEDs are expressly identified in all of

the Company’s publication such as circulars, announcements and/or relevant corporate communications in

which the names of Directors of the Company are disclosed.

The principal functions of the Board are to make decision on the objectives, strategic plans, budgets and

management structure of the Company; to oversee the management of the business and affairs of the

Group; to supervise the management of the business and affairs with the objective of enhancing the

Company and shareholders’ value with the proper delegation of the power to the management for its day-

to-day operation of the Company, implementation of the budgets and strategic plans and development of

the organization of the Company for implementing the Board’s decision. During the period under review, the

Board has reviewed, inter alia, the performance of the Group and formulated business strategy of the Group;

reviewed and approved the interim and final results of the Group for the period ended 31 December 2005;

approved the Group’s acquisitions exercises; approved the change of principal place of address of the

Company in Hong Kong; approved the change of the year end date of the Company; approved the change

of the Company’s name; and reviewed internal controls taken by the Group.

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis, as required by business needs. The

Articles of the Company allows board meetings to be conducted by way of telephone or video conference

and any resolutions to be passed by way of written resolutions circulated to and signed by all Directors from

time to time when necessary unless any matters in which a substantial shareholder or a Director or their

respective associates has conflict of interest. The Board held totally 12 Board meetings during the period

under review.

In the said Board meetings, sufficient notices for regular board meetings and reasonable days for non-

regular board meetings were given to all Directors so as to ensure that each one of them had an opportunity

to attend the meetings, and agendas accompanying board papers were given to all Directors in a timely

manner before the appointed date of the Board meetings. Sufficient information was also supplied by the

management to the Board enabling it to make decisions to the best interests of the Company.

In considering the nomination of a new director, the Board will take into account the qualification, in

particular as required in the Listing Rules, ability, working experience, leadership and professional ethics of

the candidates. The Board considers that the existing human resource policy in recruitment of new senior

staff is also applicable to new director.
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Corporate Governance Report

Attendance Record of individual Directors at meetings from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005

Board Attendance Rate

Number of Meetings 12

Executive Directors

CHIANG Pedro (Chairman, appointed on 22 July 2005) 7/9 78%

LAW Kar Po (Vice Chairman) 8/12 67%

WU Ka I, Miguel (CEO, appointed on 22 July 2005) 8/9 89%

HOI Man Pak (appointed on 22 July 2005) 6/9 67%

UNG Choi Kun (appointed on 22 July 2005) 5/9 56%

LEE Sam Yuen, John 0/12 0%

LAW Wing Yee, Wendy 9/12 75%

LEE Siu Yuk, Eliza 12/12 100%

WONG Yuk Kwan (resigned on 29 June 2005) 1/1 100%

Non-executive Directors

Leonel Alberto ALVES (appointed on 25 August 2005) 0/6 0%

CHUI Sai Cheong (appointed on 25 August 2005) 0/6 0%

WONG Alfonso (resigned on 25 August 2005) 0/6 0%

INEDs

LAU Wai Ming (appointed on 1 August 2005) 2/8 25%

KWOK Hong Yee, Jesse (appointed on 25 August 2005) 1/6 17%

WONG King Lam, Joseph (appointed on 25 August 2005) 1/6 17%

CHAN Nim Leung, Leon (resigned on 31 July 2005) 2/4 50%

HA Kee Choy, Eugene (resigned on 25 August 2005) 2/6 33%

NG Kai Man, Luke (resigned on 25 August 2005) 1/6 17%

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Code provision A2.1 stipulated the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and

should not be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and

chief executive officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr Chiang Pedro has been the Chairman and Mr. Wu Ka I, Miguel has been the Chief Executive Officer of

the Company. Their respective responsibilities are clearly set out in writing and approved by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to appointment of a

sufficient number of independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) and at least an INED with appropriate

professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise. The Board comprises

three INEDs including two with financial management expertises.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors on terms no
less exacting than the required standard set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
Having made specific enquiry of all the directors, all the directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
directors adopted by the Company.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements of the Company for the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee and audited by the external auditors, CCIF CPA Limited. The Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of the Group and presenting a balanced,
clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects. They are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors ensure the preparation of the financial statements of the Group are in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the publication of
the financial statements of the Group in a timely manner. The Board is pleased to report that, so far, the final
and interim results of the Group are announced within the four months and three months limit respectively
after the end of the relevant periods.

BOARD COMMITTEE
Audit Committee

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. The written terms of reference
which describes the authority and duties of the Audit Committee was prepared and adopted with reference
to “A Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee” and “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” published
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and was amended in accordance with Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee, comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Lau Wai Ming, Mr. Kwok
Hong Yee, Jesse and Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph, met regularly during the financial period. During the
meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the
interim and annual reports of the Group and discussed with management the auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters including the review of the unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2005 and the audited results for the nine months ended 31 December 2005. The chairman of the
Audit Committee is Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph, who is a qualified accountant. None of the Audit Committee
members are members of the former or existing auditors of the Company.

Attendance Record of Audit Committee Meetings from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005

Audit Attendance
Committee Rate

Number of Meetings 3

LAU Wai Ming (appointed on 1 August 2005) 2/2 100%
KWOK Hong Yee, Jesse (appointed on 25 August 2005) 2/2 100%
WONG King Lam, Joseph (appointed on 25 August 2005) 2/2 100%
CHAN Nim Leung, Leon (resigned on 31 July 2005) 1/1 100%
HA Kee Choy, Eugene (resigned on 25 August 2005) 1/1 100%
NG Kai Man, Luke (resigned on 25 August 2005) 1/1 100%
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Corporate Governance Report

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee was established for the purposes of making recommendations to the Board

on the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and senior management. The written

terms of reference which describes the authority and duties of the Compensation Committee was prepared

and adopted during the period under review. The Compensation Committee comprises one executive Director

(Mr. Chiang Pedro, the chairman of the Compensation Committee) and three INEDs (Mr. Wong King Lam,

Joseph, Mr. Lau Wai Ming and Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse). The Compensation Committee has not met

during the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established for the purposes of reviewing the structure, size and composition

of the board as well as identifying individuals suitable and qualified to become board members. The written

terms of reference which describes the authority and duties of the Nomination Committee was prepared and

adopted during the period under review. The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director (Mr.

Chiang Pedro, the chairman of the Nomination Committee) and three INEDs (Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph,

Mr. Lau Wai Ming and Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse). The Nomination Committee had not held any meeting

during the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and effective internal control system of the

Group. The system of internal controls aims to help achieving the Group’s business objectives, safeguarding

assets and maintaining proper accounting records for provision of reliable financial information. The Board

has delegated to the management the implementation of such systems of internal controls as well as the

review of relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management procedures. The

design of the system is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement in

the financial statements or loss of assets and to manage rather than to eliminate risks of failure when

business objectives are sought.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the period under review, the Group has proactively enhanced its corporate transparency and

communications with its shareholders and the investment community through its mandatory interim and final

reports. Through the timely distribution of press releases, the Group has also kept the public abreast of its

latest developments.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The

Chairman as well as Chairman of the Audit Committee and Chairman of the Compensation Committee are

pleased to answer shareholder’s questions.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantially separate issue.

Details of poll/voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll are included in the circular

to shareholders dispatched together with the annual report. The circular also includes relevant details of

proposed resolutions, including biographies of each candidate standing for re-election.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHIANG Pedro, Chairman, aged 50, has over 20 years of experience in real estate development, hotel

and restaurants operations and entertainment business in Macau. He is also the vice president of the Hotel

Golden Dragon (Macao) Company Limited. Mr. Chiang is also the founding president of “Association of

Property Agents and Realty Developers of Macau” and an adviser of National Affairs of the State Secretary

of the Kingdom of Cambodia. He is responsible for the overall policy making and business development of

the Group. He joined the Group in July 2005.

Mr. LAW Kar Po, Vice Chairman, aged 57, is presently the managing director of Lobo Investment Limited.

He has over 30 years of experience in hotel investment, property investments, manufacturing and retailing

businesses. Mr. Law is also the director of Hotel Golden Dragon (Macao) Company Limited. He is responsible

for the development of retail business of the Group. He joined the Group in August 2004

Mr. Law is also the director of Canasta Overseas Group Limited, China HealthCare Limited, China Hifu

Tumor Treatment & Medical Co. Ltd., Pearl Oriental Enterprises Nominee Ltd., Pearl Oriental Macau Limited,

Prospect Sync Holdings Limited and Star Palace Enterprises Limited, all of which are subsidiaries of the

Company. He is the father of Ms. Law Wing Yee, Wendy.

Mr. WU Ka I, Miguel, Chief Executive Officer, aged 49, has over 20 years of experience in real estate

development, retail business, hotel and restaurant operations and entertainment business in Macau. Mr. Wu

is the director of the Hotel Golden Dragon (Macao) Company Limited. He is also the vice president of

“Association of Property Agents and Realty Developers of Macau”, the vice president of Association of

Macau Restaurant Merchants, committee member of the 9th Chinese People’s Political Consultative

Conference of the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region and a member of standing committee of the 9th

Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of the Guangdong Province Zhongshan City. Mr. Wu is

responsible for the day-to-day management and also the business development of the Group. He joined the

Group in July 2005.

Mr. HOI Man Pak, aged 45, has over 20 years of experience in the tourism, restaurant operations and

entertainment business in Macau. He is also a director of the Hotel Golden Dragon (Macao) Company

Limited. Mr. Hoi is a member of the Macau Tourism Development Committee of the Macau Government and

member of the Fujian-Macao Economic Cooperation Promotion Committee. He is responsible for the

development, management and operation of hotel business of the Group. He joined the Group in July 2005.

Mr. UNG Choi Kun, aged 59, has over 20 years of experience in real estate development in Macau and the

PRC. Mr. Ung is also a director of the Hotel Golden Dragon (Macao) Company Limited. He is a consultative

committee member of “Civic and Municipal Affairs Bureau of Macau” and a vice president of “Association of

Property Agents and Realty Developers of Macau”. Mr. Ung is responsible for the overall financial policy

making, development and management of hotel business of the Group. He joined the Group in July 2005.
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Mr. LEE Sam Yuen, John (“Mr. Lee”), aged 56, over 30 years of experience in leather trading and

distribution. Mr. Lee has been a director of Dah Hwa Leather & Trading Company Limited, a subsidiary of

the Company, since its incorporation in 1979. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Management from Purdue

University, U.S.A. and honourable Ph.D degree in Business from the Southern California University, U.S.A.

Mr. Lee is responsible for the manufacturing, distribution and trading of leather business of the Group. He

joined the Group in 1974.

Ms. LAW Wing Yee, Wendy (“Miss Law”), aged 27, is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong. Miss Law holds a

LLB degree from University of London, UK and the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from University of Hong

Kong. She is responsible for overall business development as well as manages the daily operation of the

retail business of the Group. Miss Law joined the Group in September 2004.

Miss Law is also the director of Canasta Overseas Group Limited, China HealthCare Limited, China Hifu

Tumor Treatment & Medical Co. Ltd., Honesty Treasure Ltd., Pearl Oriental Macau Limited, Prospect Sync

Holdings Limited, Star Palace Enterprises Limited, Gold Oasis Development Limited and Star Power Trading

Limited, all of which are subsidiaries of the Company. She is a daughter of Mr. Law Kar Po.

Ms. LEE Siu Yuk, Eliza (“Ms. Lee”), aged 45, has over 20 years of experience in business operation,

investment, marketing and project management. Ms. Lee holds a Master degree of Business Administration

from Murdoch University, Australia. Ms. Lee is responsible for the implementation of corporate policy,

business development plans, administration, the management of daily operation, marketing functions and

general affairs of the Group. She joined the Group in September 2004.

Ms. Lee is also the director of Canasta Overseas Group Limited, China HealthCare Limited, China Hifu

Tumor Treatment & Medical Co. Ltd., Kenitic Innovation Limited, Honesty Treasure Ltd., Pearl Oriental

Macau Limited, Prospect Sync Holdings Limited and Star Palace Enterprises Limited, all of which are

subsidiaries of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leonel Alberto ALVES, 48, is a solicitor with over 20 years of experience serving for the Government

of the Macau SAR. He obtained his Bachelor degree in Law from the Universidade Classica de Lisboa (里斯

本傳統大學 ) in 1980. He is a member of the Legislative Assembly of Macau SAR since 1984, executive

committee members of the Executive Council of the Macau SAR and the Chief Executive Election Committee

of the Macau SAR, the chairman of Comissao de Fiscalizacao da Disciplina das Forcas e Servicos de

Seguranca de Macau (澳門保安部隊及保安部門紀律監察委員會 ) and the President of the General Meeting

of the Sacred House of Mercy of Macao. Mr. Alves joined the Group in August 2005.

Mr. CHUI Sai Cheong, 51, Certified Public Auditor in Macau and a fellow of CPA Australia, is a Civil

Constructor by profession with a Master degree in Business Administration from Chaminade University of

Hawaii, USA. He is a member of several key governmental committees both in China and Macau including

the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, the Legislative Assembly

of Macau, the Preparatory Committee of Macau, the Selection Committee for the first Government and the

Election Committee of the second Government of Macau. He also holds several prominent positions in

professional bodies including the Macau Chamber of Commerce (Vice President of Board of Director), the

Macau Management Association (President) and the Association of Economic Sciences of Macau (President).

Mr. Chui joined the Group in August 2005.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU Wai Ming, 50, has been a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants since 1986. He was an accountant of Staveley Far East Engineering Limited, a member company

of an UK listed company. Mr. Lau is also a director of an association organizing seminars focusing on

cultural exchange between east and west for business executives, professionals and civil servants in various

cities. Mr. Lau joined the Group in August 2005.

Mr. KWOK Hong Yee, Jesse, aged 52, is both an independent solicitor and notary in Messrs. Jesse H. Y.

Kwok & Co. with substantial previous working experiences acting as solicitors of the Supreme Courts in

Hong Kong, the United Kingdom and Singapore. He obtained his Bachelor of Laws (LLB) and Master of

Laws (LLM) in Civil Laws from the Peking University in the PRC. Mr. Kwok was appointed as a Temporary

Magistrate between December 1994 and March 1995, a Temporary Adjudicator of the Small Claims Tribunal

and a Panel Arbitrator. He is also members of the Law Society of Hong Kong, the Law Society of England,

Singapore Academy of Law, the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, the Hong Kong Securities Institute, the

Hong Kong Institute of Directors and he is also a committee member of the Society of Notaries. Mr. Kwok

joined the Group in August 2005.

Mr. WONG King Lam, Joseph, aged 53, is currently the chief executive officer of CHALLENGER Auto

Services Limited. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has more than 24 years’ extensive experiences

in auditing, corporate and financial management with a number of companies in different business sectors

which include an international accounting firm and a local listed company. Mr. Wong joined the Group in

August 2005.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Group Affairs

Mr. YAN Man Sing, Frankie, aged 49, is the Chief Operation Officer of the Group. Mr. Yan has over 20

years experience in the securities and properties investment industries and having exposures in the mergers

and acquisitions and IPOs exercises in Hong Kong and the PRC. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants and worked in London and Hong Kong offices of an international

auditing firm, local listed companies and brokerage houses. He joined the Group in October 2005.

Mr. LAW Chun Choi, aged 46, is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Group. He is a

rich-experienced accountant. Mr. Law has extensive experience in operation among various businesses. Mr.

Law graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate

Administration and Professional Diploma in Accountancy. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute

of Company Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He joined the Group

in April 2005.
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Leather Business

Ms. NG Fung Ying, aged 56, is also the Director of a subsidiary of the Group. Ms. Ng has more than 35

years of experience in the leather industry and is responsible for the manufacturing and sales of the

handbags division. She joined the Group in 1981. She is the sister of Mr. Ng Hoi Chun.

Mr. NG Hoi Chun, aged 45, has more than 22 years of experience in the leatherware industry and is

responsible for the operation of the leatherware division. Mr. Ng joined the Group in 1981. He is the brother

of Ms. Ng Fung Ying.

Healthcare Business

Mr. DAI Wei Dong, aged 45, is the Managing Director of China HealthCare Ltd. Mr. Dai was a PH. D

student in Faculty of the Medicine of the Sheffield University and Ph. D student in Faculty of Forensic

Medicine (Pathology) of Sun Yat-Sen University of Medical Sciences. He also holds the master degree from

Sun Yat-Sen University and bachelor degree from Anhui Medical University. He served as the Guest Professor

and Lecturer in reputable universities. Mr. Dai has more than 18 years experience in operation and management

of the medical enterprise. He joined the Group in July 2005.

Mr. LI Paul, aged 59, is the founder and Chief Executive Officer of 999 E-Tech Incorporation. Mr. Li has

more than 10 years experience in medical system engineering and design in North America. He established

the 999 E-Tech Incorporation in 2001 and to set up chain medical health-care centres in Toronto.

Mr. TANG Wilson, aged 42, is the Managing Director of Kenitic Innovation Limited and is also the founder

of Kenitic Electromagnetic Therapy Instrument in Hong Kong. Mr. Tang is an extremely experience entrepreneur

in the Asia Pacific Region with excellent public relations skill for over 15 years. He is also a renowned

business consultant in Hong Kong, China, New Zealand, Thailand and Singapore and is currently responsible

to set up the first “Electromagnetic Therapy Instrument” manufacturing plant in Hong Kong. Mr. Tang holds

a Master degree of Business and Administrative Management from University of South Australia.

Dr. LIANG Bang Yao, aged 42, is the Marketing Manager of ChongQing Haijian Medical Technology Co.,

Ltd. Mr. Liang is a medical doctor and is responsible for marketing and operating of the Hifu clinical centres.

He had also studied business management in Tokyo and has more than 8 years experience in business

operation and management in Japan.
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The Directors would like to present their annual report together with the audited financial statement of

Honesty Treasure International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the 9

months ended 31st December 2005.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special general meeting held on 29 September 2005 and an

approval by the Registrar if Companies in Cayman Island, the name of the Company has been changed from

“Pearl Oriental Enterprises Limited 東方明珠實業有限公司 ” to “Honesty Treasure International Holdings

Limited 信寶國際控股有限公司 ” with effect from 7 October 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is primarily an investment holding company and its investment portfolio includes (i) hotel and

real estate investments; (ii) property development; (iii) trading, distribution and retailing of leather products;

and (iv) healthcare and medical-related business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the group’s sales and purchases attributable to the major customers and

suppliers respectively during the financial period is as follows:

Percentage of the group’s total

Sales Purchases

The largest customer 8%

Five largest customers in aggregate 27%

The largest supplier 12%

Five largest suppliers in aggregate 43%

At no time during the period have the directors, their associates or any shareholder of the company (which

to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share capital) had any interest in

these major customers and suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past four financial year ended

31 March 2005 and 9-month ended 31 December 2005 is set out on page 82 of the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the 9 months ended 31 December 2005 are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 24 of this annual report.

The state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2005 are set out in the balance

sheet on pages 25 to 27.

The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of significant changes in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the review period are

set out in Note 17 to the accompanying financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital of the Company during the period are set out in Note 30 to the financial

statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the review period are set out on page 28 and

in Note 31 to the accompanying financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

shares during the 9 months ended 31 December 2005 and up to the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of

the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rate basis to existing

shareholders.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are set out in Notes 19 and 20 to the accompanying

financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings as at 31 December 2005 are set out in Notes 26 and 29 to the accompanying

financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group are set out in Note 12 to the accompanying financial

statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out on pages 9 to 13 of this annual

report.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors who held office during the review period and up to the date of this report are:

Executive directors:

Mr. Chiang Pedro, Chairman (appointed on 22 July 2005)
Mr. Law Kar Po, Vice Chairman

Mr. Wu Ka I, Miguel, Chief Executive Officer (appointed on 22 July 2005)
Mr. Hoi Man Pak (appointed on 22 July 2005)
Mr. Ung Choi Kun (appointed on 22 July 2005)
Mr. Lee Sam Yuen, John
Ms. Law Wing Yee, Wendy
Ms. Lee Siu Yuk, Eliza
Mr. Wong Yuk Kwan (resigned on 29 June 2005)

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Leonel Alberto Alves (appointed on 25 August 2005)
Mr. Chui Sai Cheong (appointed on 25 August 2005)
Dr. Wong Alfonso (resigned on 25 August 2005)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Lau Wai Ming (appointed on 1 August 2005)
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse (appointed on 25 August 2005)
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph (appointed on 25 August 2005)
Mr. Chan Nim Leung, Leon (resigned on 31 July 2005)
Mr. Ha Kee Choy, Eugene (resigned on 25 August 2005)
Mr. Ng Kai Man, Luke (resigned on 25 August 2005)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Law Kar Po, Mr. Ung Choi
Kun, Mr. Lau Wai Ming, Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse and Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph shall retire from the
Board at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each non-executive director is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association.

None of the directors has an unexpired service contract with the Company which is not terminable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Company has entered into service agreement with Mr. Lee Sam Yuen, John who was appointed as the
Executive Director for a term of 2 years commencing on 1 January 2004. His remuneration is determined by
the board of directors on the anniversary of the date of his appointment.

The agreement can be terminated without payment of compensation by the contracting parties giving six
months written notice.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
As at the reporting date, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation(s) (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which
were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Personal
Interests Corporate Other

Name of Director in Shares Interest Interest

Mr. Chiang Pedro 153,640,520 – –
Mr. Law Kar Po 265,022,000 – –
Mr. Wu Ka I, Miguel 35,067,140 – –
Mr. Hoi Man Pak 85,112,600 – –
Mr. Ung Choi Kun (note a) 2,200,000 – –

Notes:

(a) Mr. Ung Choi Kun directly held 5,000,000 Warrants (2.22% of the total issued Warrants) issued by the Company

carrying the rights to subscribe for 5,000,000 new Shares at a subscription price of HK$0.35 per Share (subject

to adjustment) until 20 July 2007.

Save as disclosed above, as at the reporting date, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are set out on pages 14 to 17
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
Except for the related party transactions as disclosed in the accompanying financial statements, no other
contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company or subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the review period or at any time during the review period.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
At no time during the period was the Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors or chief executives of the Company or any of their
spouses or children under eighteen years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at the reporting date, according to the register of interest kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO and so far as was known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company, the following persons
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital (including any options in respect of such capital) carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group:

Number of Percentage
Name issued shares holding

Mr. Law Kar Po 265,022,000 9.36%
Mr. Chiang Pedro 153,640,520 5.43%

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the review period.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the Group are set out in note 38 to the financial
statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has an audit committee consisting of three independent non-executive directors of the Company.
The committee reviews the system of internal controls throughout the Group, the completeness and accuracy
of its financial statements and liaises on behalf of the Board with the auditors. It met regularly with the
management and the auditors to review the audit reports and the interim and final financial statements of the
Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed amount of public float during the review period and up to the
date of this report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS
The accompanying financial statements were audited by Messrs CCIF CPA Limited A resolution for their re-
appointment as the Company’s auditors for the ensuring year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Wu Ka I, Miguel
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 April 2006
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CCIF CPA LIMITED
37/F Hennessy Centre
500 Hennessy Road

www.ccifcpa.com.hk

Auditors’ report to the shareholders of
Honesty Treasure International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 24 to 81 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS
The Company’s directors are responsible to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view. In
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently, that judgements and estimates are made which are prudent
and reasonable and that the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards are
stated.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those financial statements and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s and the Group’s circumstances, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 December 2005 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the period from 1 April
2005 to 31 December 2005 and have been properly prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 April 2006

Chan Wai Dune, Charles
Practising Certificate Number P00712
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Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

(Re-stated)

Turnover 5, 6 73,589 207,107

Cost of sales (53,296) (176,724)

Gross profit 20,293 30,383

Other revenue 5 1,841 8,147

Selling and distribution costs (4,357) (5,915)

General and administrative expenses (37,337) (47,586)

Loss from operations (19,560) (14,971)

Impairment loss on intangible assets (30,160) (71,141)

Loss on disposal of interests in subsidiaries – (26,956)

(49,720) (113,068)

Finance costs 7 (191) (943)

Share of results of associates 8 86,140 5,299

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 9 36,229 (108,712)

Taxation 13 (44) 91

Profit/(Loss) after taxation 36,185 (108,621)

Attributable to:

– Equity holders of the parent 38,399 (108,308)

– Minority interests (2,214) (313)

36,185 (108,621)

Earnings/(Loss) per share 15

– Basic 1.78 cents (8.85 cents)

– Diluted 1.67 cents N/A

The notes on pages 33 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2005

31/12/2005 31/3/2005
Note HK$’000 HK$’000

(Re-stated)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets

Investment property 16 – –
Property, plant and equipment 17 15,723 14,229
Property under development 18 72,731 –
Interests in associates 20 606,349 520,209
Intangible assets 21 – 30,160

694,803 564,598

Current assets
Inventories 22 12,335 18,852
Trade and other receivables 23 18,863 22,625
Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss/short-term investments 24 66 52
Merchant bank account 71 –
Margin deposit 764 –
Bank balances and cash 19,517 12,818

51,616 54,347

Current liabilities
Bills payable 353 293
Trade and other payables 25 26,040 24,676
Current portion of interest-bearing borrowings 26
• Other loans 15,000 –
• Trust receipt loans and bank loans, secured 39,788 7,744
• Loan notes 1,461 1,400
Obligations under finance lease 29 253 325
Due to related companies 27 913 –
Due to directors 27 812 1,700
Due to minority shareholders 27 52,997 33,559
Taxation payable – 302

137,617 69,999

Net current liabilities (86,001) (15,652)

Total assets less current liabilities 608,802 548,946

Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance lease 29 64 242
Provision for long service payments 28 934 1,928

(998) (2,170)

NET ASSETS 607,804 546,776
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31/12/2005 31/3/2005
Note HK$’000 HK$’000

(Re-stated)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Issued capital 30 121,541 98,531

Reserves 485,866 445,682

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 607,407 544,213

Minority interests 397 2,563

TOTAL EQUITY 607,804 546,776

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 April 2006

Wu Ka I, Miguel Lee Siu Yuk, Eliza

Director Director

The notes on pages 33 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2005

31/12/2005 31/3/2005
Note HK$’000 HK$’000

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plants and equipment 17 – –

Interests in subsidiaries 19 2,100 44,100

Loan to a subsidiary 19 8,400 –

10,500 44,100

Current assets

Due from subsidiaries 19 567,514 501,411

Prepayments and sundry deposits 622 169

Bank balances 6,311 4,123

574,447 505,703

Current liabilities

Other payables 2,907 4,190

Other loans 26 15,000 –

Loan notes 26 1,461 1,400

19,368 5,590

Net current assets 555,079 500,113

NET ASSETS 565,579 544,213

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Issued capital 30 121,541 98,531

Reserves 31 444,038 445,682

565,579 544,213

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 April 2006

Wu Ka I, Miguel Lee Siu Yuk, Eliza

Director Director

The notes on pages 33 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Investment (Accumulated
Capital property losses)/

Share Share redemption Goodwill revaluation Warrant Translation Retained Minority Consolidated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 April 2004 53,901 150,196 69 3,159 1,650 – (223) (109,813) 98,939 349 99,288
Issue of shares at premium

(Note 30(a) & (b)) 44,630 510,599 – – – – – – 555,229 – 555,229
Release on disposal of

investment properties – – – – (1,650) – – – (1,650) 1,901 251
Exchange differences arising

on translation – – – – – – 3 – 3 – 3
Net loss for the year – – – – – – – (108,308) (108,308) 313 (107,995)

At 31 March 2005 98,531 660,795 69 3,159 – – (220) (218,121) 544,213 2,563 546,776
Transfer on adoption

of HKFRS 3 – – – (3,159) – – – 3,159 – – –

As restated 98,531 660,795 69 – – – (220) (214,962) 544,213 2,563 546,776

Issue of shares at premium
(Note 30(c)) 3,000 17,410 – – – – – – 20,410 – 20,410

Capitalisation of share
premium (Note 30(d)) 20,010 (20,010) – – – – – – – – –

Investment in subsidiary – – – – – – – – – 48 48
Expenses on capitalization

of premium – (320) – – – – – – (320) – (320)
Issue of warrants (Note 30(c)) – – – – – 4,950 – – 4,950 – 4,950
Exchange differences

arising on translation – – – – – – (245) – (245) – (245)
Net profit for the period – – – – – – – 38,399 38,399 (2,214) 36,185
Reduction of share premium

transfer to accumulated
loss (Note 31) – (218,856) – – – – – 218,856 – – –

At 31 December 2005 121,541 439,019 69 – – 4,950 (465) 42,293 607,407 397 607,804

Reserves retained by:
At 31 December 2005

– Company and
subsidiaries 121,541 439,019 69 – – 4,950 (465) (49,173) 515,941 397 516,338

– Associates – – – – – – – 91,466 91,466 – 91,466

121,541 439,019 69 – – 4,950 (465) 42,293 607,407 397 607,804

At 31 March 2005
– Company and

subsidiaries 98,531 660,795 69 3,159 – – (220) (223,447) 538,887 2,563 541,450
– Associates – – – – – – – 5,326 5,326 – 5,326

98,531 660,795 69 3,159 – – (220) (218,121) 544,213 2,563 546,776

The notes on pages 33 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss from operations (19,560) (14,971)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 2,073 3,151

Impairment charge on property, plant and

equipment 27 7,300

Gain on disposal of investment property – (1,650)

Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (1) –

Loss/(Gain) on disposal on property, plant and

equipment 1 (5,605)

Net unrealized holding (gain)/loss on short-term

investments (24) 96

Net realized loss on short-term investment – 1,271

Interest income (144) (15)

Reversal of provision for long service payments (47) –

Operating loss before working capital changes (17,675) (10,423)

Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 6,517 (13,176)

Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other receivables 3,762 (13,645)

(Increase)/Decrease in merchant bank account (71) –

(Increase)/Decrease in margin deposit (764) –

Decrease in short-term investment – 2,301

Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables 714 20,615

Increase in bills payable 60 –

Increase in due to minority shareholders 19,438 33,560

Increase in due to related companies 913 –

Decrease in due to director (888) (133)

Decrease in provision for long service payments (947) (306)

Cash generated from operations 11,059 18,793

Taxation paid (346) –

Interest paid (14) (943)

Interest received 144 15

Net cash from operating activities 10,843 17,865
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Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash flow from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiary net of cash acquired A – (16,960)

Net cash outflow upon disposal of interests

subsidiaries B – (6,856)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,448) (3,522)

Purchase of property under development (72,197) –

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment – 12,454

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss 11 5,350

Purchase of an associate – (238,000)

Net cash used in investing activities (75,634) (247,534)

Cash flow from financing activities

Loan payable 52,200 –

Issue of new shares with premium 20,090 257,419

Acquisition of interests in subsidiaries from

minority shareholders – (275)

Repayment of loan notes (5,156) (16,840)

Repayment of obligation under finance lease (250) (335)

Issue of warrants 4,950 –

Net cash from financing activities 71,834 239,969

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 7,043 10,300

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of period/year 12,818 2,832

Effect of foreign rate changes (344) (314)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period/year 19,517 12,818

Analysis on cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash 19,517 12,818

The notes on pages 33 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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A. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Net assets acquired of:

Property, plant and machinery – 762

Inventories – 84

Trade and other receivables – 2,034

Bank balances and bank overdraft – 3,040

Trade and other payables – (374)

Taxation – (302)

Deferred taxation – (91)

Due to directors – (1,833)

– 3,320

Less: Minority interests – (1,627)

– 1,693

Add: Goodwill arising on acquisition – 47,307

– 49,000

Purchase consideration:

• Cash – 20,000

• Issue of shares – 22,000

• Other investments – 7,000

– 49,000

Acquisition of subsidiary net of cash acquired:

Cash consideration – (20,000)

Less: Bank balances acquired – 3,040

– (16,960)
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B. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Net assets disposed of:

Property, plant and machinery – 19,964

Inventories – 16,821

Trade and other receivables – 25,780

Bank balances and cash – 10,956

Interest-bearing borrowings – (22,828)

Trade and other payables – (19,288)

Minority interests – (349)

– 31,056

Loss on disposal of interests in subsidiaries – (26,956)

– 4,100

Satisfied by:

Cash – 4,100

Net cash outflow upon disposal of subsidiaries:

Cash consideration – 4,100

Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of

• Bank balances and cash – (10,956)

– (6,856)
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability

and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries and associates are principally

engaged in property development; trading, distribution and retailing of leatherware products;

healthcare and medical-related business; and hotel and real estate investment.

(b) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the period, the Company changed its year end date from 31 March to 31 December so

as to have the year end date to be co-terminous among the group companies.

The financial statements for the current period cover the nine months period ended 31 December

2005. The corresponding amounts shown for the consolidated income statement, consolidated

statement of charges in equity, consolidated cash flow statement and related notes covered a

twelve months period from 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2005 and therefore may not be comparable

with amounts shown for the current period.

(c) CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the company and its subsidiaries

made up to 31 December. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the

period/year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of

acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the group are eliminated on

consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the difference between the proceeds

of the sale and the group’s share of its net assets together with any goodwill or capital reserve

which was not previously charged or recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the operating results and

net assets of subsidiaries.

2.1 IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has issued a number of new or revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations,
herein collectively referred to as the new HKFRSs, which are generally effective for accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2005.
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2.1 IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Adoption of NEW HKFRSs AND HKASs

The Group has adopted the following HKASs and HKFRSs issued in the financial statements for the
period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005:

HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements
HKAS 2 Inventories
HKAS 7 Cash flow statements
HKAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors
HKAS 10 Events after the balance sheet date
HKAS 12 Incomes taxes
HKAS 14 Segment reporting
HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment
HKAS 17 Leases
HKAS 18 Revenue
HKAS 19 Employee benefits
HKAS 21 The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates
HKAS 23 Borrowing costs
HKAS 24 Related party disclosures
HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements
HKAS 28 Investments in associates
HKAS 32 Financial instruments: Disclosure and presentation
HKAS 33 Earnings per share
HKAS 34 Interim financing reporting
HKAS 36 Impairment of assets
HKAS 37 Provision, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
HKAS 38 Intangible assets
HKAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement
HKAS 40 Investment property
HKFRS 2 Share base payment
HKFRS 3 Business combinations

The adoption of these new/revised HKASs 1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 14, 16, 17, 18, 19, 21, 23, 24, 27, 28,
32, 33, 34, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, HKFRS 2 and 3 did not result in substantial changes to the accounting
policies of the Group and the methods of computation in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
In summary:

– HKAS 1 affects certain presentation in the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

– HKASs 14, 16, 17, 23, 24, 28, 32 and 39 affect certain presentations and disclosures of the
consolidated financial statements.

– HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 18, 19, 21, 27, 33, 34, 36, 37, 38, 40, HKFRS 2 and 3 do not have any
significant impact as the Group’s accounting policies have already complied with these
standards.
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2.1 IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The adoption of HKASs 32 and 39 has resulted in a change in the accounting policy relating to the

short-term investments which is classified as the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

HKAS 39 does not permit to recognise, derecognise and measure financial assets and liabilities in

accordance with this standard on a retrospective basis. The Group applied the previous Hong Kong

Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP”) 24 “Accounting for investments in securities” to

short-term investments for the comparative information. The adjustments required for the accounting

differences between SSAP 24 and HKAS 39, if any, are determined and recognised at 1 April 2005.

2.2 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not

yet effective, to these Financial Statements. Unless otherwise stated, these HKFRSs are effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006:

HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures

HKAS 19 Amendment Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures

HKAS 39 Amendment Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

HKAS 39 Amendment The Fair Value Option

HKAS 39 and Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

HKFRS 4 Amendments and Insurance Contracts – Financial Guarantee Contracts

HKFRS 1 & First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

6 Amendments and Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

HKFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) - Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease

HK(IFRIC) - Int 5 Rights to Interests Arising from Decommissioning, Restoration

and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

HK(IFRIC) - Int 6 Liabilities Arising from Participating in a Specific Market – Waste

electrical and Electronic Equipment

HK(IFRIC) - Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29 Financial

Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economics

HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The

revised standard will affect the disclosures about qualitative information about the Group’s objective,

policies and processes for managing capital; quantitative data about what the Company regards as

capital; and compliance with any capital requirements and the consequences of any non-compliance.

HKFRS 7 incorporates the disclosure requirements of HKAS 32 relating to financial instruments. This

HKFRS shall be applied for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2007.
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2.2 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The HKAS 39 Amendment regarding the fair value option restricts the designation of any financial

asset or financial liability as measured at fair value through profit and loss, unless certain conditions

can be met.

The HKAS 19 Amendment, HKAS 39 Amendments regarding cash flow hedge accounting of forecast

intragroup transactions, HKFRSs 1, 4 and 6 Amendments, HKFRS 6, HK(IFRIC)-INT 4, 5, 6 and 7 do

not apply to the activities of the Group. HK(IFRIC)- Int 7 is effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2006.

Except as stated above, the Group expects that the adoption of other pronouncement listed above

will not have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements in the period of initial application.

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles in Hong Kong and comply with Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Financial Reporting

Standards (“HKAS” or “HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation

of certain properties, plant and equipment and investment properties. These financial statements also

comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below:

(a) REVENUE RECOGNITION

i) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks and rewards of

ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the goods are delivered to

customers and title has passed.

ii) Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis.

iii) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal

amounts outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

iv) Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties which are held by the owner or lessee, either to earn

rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently

undetermined future use. Investment properties are stated at fair value at balance sheet date.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value of the investment properties is recognised

in the income statement. Gain or loss on disposal of investment properties is determined as

the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in the income statement upon disposal.

The fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by an independent valuer who

holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the

location and category of the property being valued. The fair value is based on open market

values.

(c) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation (see note 3(f))

and impairment losses (see note 3(g)).

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any

directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its normal working condition and location for

its intended use. Major costs incurred in restoring property, plant and equipment to their

normal working condition are charged to the income statement. In situation where it can be

clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic

benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item in property, plant and equipment,

and where the cost can be reliably measured, the expenditure is capitalized and depreciated

over their expected useful live.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of

that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated

separately.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the net

sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the income

statement.

(d) PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development represented assets under construction for future sale purpose.

The properties under development are stated at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost

comprises land cost, direct cost of construction, borrowing costs and other direct cost

attributable to the development.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) ASSETS UNDER LEASES

i) Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with

the leasing company are accounted for as operating leases. Rentals receivables/payables

under such operating leases are accounted for in the income statement on a straight-

line basis over the periods of the respective lease.

ii) Assets held for use in operating leases

Where the group leases out assets under operating leases, the assets are included in

the balance sheet according to their nature and, where applicable, are depreciated in

accordance with the group’s depreciation policies, as set out in note 3(f). Impairment

losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note

3(g). Revenue arising from operating leases is recognised in accordance with the group’s

revenue recognition policies, as set out in note 3(a)(ii).

iii) Operating leases charges

Where the group has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made under

the lease are charged to the income statement in equal instalments over the accounting

periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more

representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease

incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the

aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to the income

statement in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

(f) AMORTISATION AND DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is not provided for freehold land. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated

at rates sufficient to write off their cost/valuation less accumulated impairment loss over their

estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Buildings 2-5% or over the lease term, if shorter

Furniture and fixtures 10-20%

Office equipment 10-20%

Plant and machinery 5-20%

Motor vehicles 10-20%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify

indications that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised

no longer exists or may have decreased:

– property, plant and equipment;

– interests in subsidiaries and associates (except for those accounted for at fair value);

– goodwill (whether taken initially to reserves or recognised as an asset); and

– financial assets.

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization, which are at least

tested annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are

subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is

recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable

amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and

value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped of the lowest

levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

(h) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s

share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Separately recognised

goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment

losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an

entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing.

(i) SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is a company in which the group or company, directly or indirectly, controls more

than half of its voting power or issued share capital or controls the composition of its board of

directors. Subsidiaries are considered to be controlled if the company has the power, directly

or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies, so as to obtain benefits from their

activities.

Interests in subsidiaries in the balance sheet are stated at cost less identified impairment loss.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j) ASSOCIATES

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled entity, in which the

Group has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and

over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is included in the

consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests

in associates are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets

under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses. Goodwill arising from the

acquisition of associates, which was not previously eliminated or recognised in the consolidated

reserves, is included as part of the Group’s interests in associates.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s income statement to the extent of

dividends received and receivable. The Company’s interests in associates are treated as long

term assets and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

(k) FINANCIAL ASSETS/INVESTMENTS

(i) Investments

Applicable to the year ended 31 December 2004:

Investments in debt and equity securities held for an identified long-term or strategic

purpose are stated at cost less provision for impairment in value. Results of investments

are accounted for to the extent of dividend and interest income.

Investments in debt securities which are intended to be held to maturity are measured

at amortized cost, less any impairment losses recognised, if necessary, in the balance

sheet. The amortisation of any discount or premium arising on acquisition is aggregated

with other investment income receivable over the period from the date of acquisition to

the date of maturity so as to give a constant yield on the investment.

Investments in debts and equity securities held not on a continuing basis identified long-

term purpose are classified as short-term investment, which are stated at fair values

with unrealized gains or losses included in the income statement using the benchmark

treatment.

Gain or loss on disposal of investments in securities, representing the difference between

the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the securities, is recognised in the

income statement in the period in which the disposal occurs.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) FINANCIAL ASSETS/INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(ii) Financial Assets

Applicable to the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005:

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

loans and receivables, held to maturity or available-for-sale financial assets. The Group

determines the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and , where

allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates the classification at the balance sheet date. All

financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. Except for financial assets carried at

fair value through profit or loss, all transaction costs of financial assets are included in

their amortised costs.

i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category. Financial

assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of

sale in the near future. Changes in fair value of financial assets in this category

are recognised in the income.

ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at

amortised cost using effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised

in the income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognized or

impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

iii) Held-to-maturity financial assets

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded in active markets,

with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s

management has both the positive intention and the ability to hold to maturity.

Held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method. If a significant portion of held-to-maturity assets are sold, the

entire category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale financial

assets.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) FINANCIAL ASSETS/INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(ii) Financial Assets (Continued)

iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets in

securities that are designated as available for sale or are not classified in any of

the other two categories. After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets

are measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised as a separate

component of equity until the investment is derecognized or impaired at which

time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is then transferred

to the income statement.

When the fair value of securities cannot be reliably measured because (a) the

variability in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that

investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot

be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such securities are

stated at cost less any impairment losses.

(l) INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, calculated on a first-

in, first-out basis, comprises all costs of purchases, costs of conversion and other costs

incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an

expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-

down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an

expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-

down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction

in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal

occurs.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the company has a

legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an

outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate

can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount

cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence

will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are

also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

(n) INCOME TAX

(i) Income tax for the period comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets

and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are

recognised in the income statement except to the extent that they relate to items

recognised directly in reserves, in which case they are recognised in reserves.

(ii) Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax

rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment

to tax payable in respect of previous periods.

(iii) Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose

and the tax bases respectively. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses

and unused tax credits.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits

will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period

when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are not discounted. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets/liabilities is reviewed at

each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that

sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.

(iv) Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented

separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against

current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only

if, the group and the company has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax

assets against current tax liabilities. The principle of offsetting usually applies to income

tax levied by the same tax authority on same taxable entity.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank

and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term

highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which

are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in values, and have a short maturity of generally

within three months when acquired. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form

an integral part of the group’s cash management are also included as a component of cash

and cash equivalent.

(p) TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Items included in the accounts of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency

of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).

The consolidated accounts are presented in Hong Kong dollars which is the Company’s

functional and presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated at exchange rates ruling at the

transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies at the balance

sheet date are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange

gains and losses are recognised in the income statement, except those arising from foreign

currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation which are recognised

directly in equity.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value

are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign enterprises are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange

rates approximately the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions; for the

period/year; balance sheet items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations

acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of

exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are dealt with

as a movement in reserves. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired

before 1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of

acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign enterprise, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences which

relate to that foreign enterprise is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs include interest charges and other costs incurred in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred, except when they are directly attributable to the

acquisition, construction or production of assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of

time to get ready for their intended use in which case they are capitalised as part of the cost of

that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when expenditures for the asset and

borrowing costs are being incurred and the activities to prepare the asset for its intended use

are in progress. Borrowing costs are capitalised at the weighted average cost of the related

borrowings until the asset is ready for its intended use. If the resulting carrying amount of the

asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recorded. All other borrowing

cost are charged to the income statement in the year in which they are incurred.

(r) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage and the cost to the company

of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the period/year in which the associated services

are rendered by employees. Provision is made in respect of paid leave entitlement

accumulated during the period/year, which can be carried forward into future periods

for compensated absence or payment in lieu if the employee leaves employment.

The group operates a defined contribution retirement schemes and the regular cost of

providing retirement benefits is charged to the income statement over the expected

service lives of the members of the scheme on the basis of level percentages of

pensionable pay. Variations from regular cost arising from triennial actuarial valuations

are allocated to the income statement over the expected remaining service lives of the

members.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory

Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance are charged to the income statement when incurred.

(ii) Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee cost

with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured

at grant date taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were

grated. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming

unconditionally entitled to the share options, the total estimated fair value of the share

options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the probability that the

options will vest.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(ii) Share based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected to vest is

reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/

credited to the profit or loss for the period of the review, unless the original employee

expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the

capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to

reflect the actual number of share options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to

the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions

that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised

in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the

share premium account) or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained

profits).

(s) RELATED PARTIES

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the

Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise

significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa,

or where the Group and the party are subject to common control or common significant

influence. Related parties may be individuals (being members of key management personnel,

significant shareholders and/or their close family member) or other entities and include entities

which are under the significant influence of related parties of the Group where those parties

are individuals, and post-employment benefit plans which are for the benefit of employees of

the Group or of any entity that is a related party of the Group.

(t) SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is a distinguishable component of the group that is engaged either in providing

products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular

economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are

different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the group’s internal financial reporting, the group has chosen business

segment information as the primary reporting format and geographical segment information as

the secondary reporting format.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to

a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. For

example, segment assets may include inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and

equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before intra-

group balances and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation process,

except to the extent that such intra-group balances and transactions are between group

enterprises within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as those

available to other external parties.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t) SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment
assets (both tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets, interest-bearing loans,
borrowings, corporate and financing expenses and minority interests.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(a) Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements:

Classification of financial assets

The Group determines the classification of certain of assets as financial assets by judging
whether they meet the definition of financial assets and financial liabilities set out in HKAS 39.
Accordingly, the financial assets are accounted for in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies set out in note 3(k) to the financial statements.

(b) Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Estimating useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives and residual values of its property, plant and
equipment based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for
use. The estimated useful lives and residual values of the property, plant and equipment
are reviewed annually and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates
due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other
limits on the use of the assets. In addition, the Group’s estimation of the useful lives and
residual values of its property, plant and equipment is based on its collective assessment
of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is
possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by
changes in those estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above. The
amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes
in these factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated useful lives and residual
values of the Group’s property, plant and equipment would increase its recorded
depreciation expenses and decreases its non-current assets.

(ii) Assets impairment

HKASs and HKFRSs require that an impairment review be performed when certain
impairment indication is present. In case of goodwill, such assets are subject to yearly
impairment test and whenever there is an indication that such asset may be impaired.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

(ii) Assets impairment (Continued)

Purchase accounting requires extensive use of accounting estimates to allocate the
purchase price to the fair market values of the assets and liabilities purchased, including
intangible assets and contingent liabilities. The Group’s business acquisitions have
resulted in goodwill, which in the past affected its results of operations for the amount
of periodic amortization expense. However, the Group no longer amortize goodwill under
HKASs and HKFRSs effective from 1 January 2004. Instead, goodwill is subject to a
periodic impairment test.

Determining the fair value of property, plant and equipment at the date of acquisition,
which requires the determination of future cash flows expected to be generated from
the continued use (i.e., value in use) and ultimate disposition of such assets, requires
the Group to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect its consolidated
financial statements. Future events could cause the Group to conclude that property,
plant and equipment associated with an acquired business is impaired. Any resulting
impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on its financial condition and
results of operations.

The preparation of estimation future cash flows involves significant estimations. While
the Group believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable, significant
changes in its assumptions may materially affect its assessment of recoverable values
and may lead to future additional impairment changes under HKASs and HKFRSs.

(iii) Deferred tax assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts at each balance sheet date and estimate
whether the Group will generate sufficient taxable profit to allow all or part of the
deferred assets to be utilised.

(iv) Financial assets

In the absence of the market price in respect of the HKASs and HKFRSs require that
the Group carries certain of its financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires
extensive use of accounting estimates. While significant components of fair value
measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e., foreign exchange
rates and interest rates), the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Group
utilized different valuation methodology. Any changes in fair value of these financial
assets and liabilities would affect directly the Group’s consolidated profit and loss and
equity.

(v) Allowances for doubtful accounts

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts of the Group is based on the
evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis of accounts and on management’s judgment.
A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realization of
these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may
be required.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

(vi) Allowances for inventories

The Group estimates the allowance for inventories based on the best available facts and
circumstances, including but not limited to, the inventories’ own conditions (i.e. whether
they are damaged or become wholly or partially obsolete), their market selling prices ,
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs to be incurred for their sale. The
provisions are re-evaluated and adjusted as additional information received affects the
amount estimated.

5. TURNOVER AND REVENUE
Turnover represented sale value of goods supplied to customers (after deduction of any goods
returns and trade discounts), retailing business, provision for healthcare and medical-related services,
interest income, gross rental income from investment properties and dividend income for the period.
The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised in turnover during the period is
analysed as follows:

Period from
1/4/2005 to Year ended
31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover
Continuing operations

Trading and retailing 72,024 199,018
Healthcare and medical-related services 1,565 8,089

73,589 207,107

Other revenue
Bad debts recovered 14 7
Interest income 144 15
Gross rental income from:

– Investment property – 733
– Property, plant and equipment 534 41

Dividend income – 96
Gain on disposal of:

– Property, plant and equipment – 5,605
– Investment property – 1,650

Realized gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss or short-term investments 2 –

Unrealized gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss or short-term investments 24 –

Office and management fee income 311 –
Sundry income 677 –
Written back of provision for doubtful debts 60 –
Gain on exchange difference 28 –
Reversal of provision for long service payments 47 –

1,841 8,147

Total revenue 75,430 215,254
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5. TURNOVER AND REVENUE (Continued)

Note:

Kenitic Innovation Limited

The Company holds 51% in Kenitic Innovation Limited (“Kenitic”) and the remaining 49% is held by General Lions

Group Inc., a company wholly owned by Mr. Tang Yuk Hing (“Mr. Tang”) and his wife. Mr. Tang is the founder of

Kenitic.

Pursuant to the Company’s circular of 17 May 2004, the Company’s announcement of 7 March 2006 and a Deed

of Guarantee dated 23 April 2004 entered into between Mr. Tang, General Lions Group Inc. (collectively the

“Guarantors”) and the Company, the Guarantors jointly and severally, irrevocably and unconditionally guaranteed

and warranted to the Company that:

(a) the total after-tax profit of Kenitic in the first two years after completion of the acquisition of Kenitic (the

“First Profit Guarantee Period”) shall be no less than HK$10,000,000 (the “Guaranteed Amount”); and

(b) the after-tax profit of Kenitic in the third year after completion of the acquisition of Kenitic shall be no less

than HK$5,000,000.

The Deed of Guarantee further provides that the after-tax profit shall be based on the annual audit report to be

issued within 60 days of the end of the respective guarantee period. In the event that the after-tax profit falls

below the guaranteed amount in the respective period referred to the above, the Guarantors shall pay the

Company the shortfall in cash within 30 days of the issuance of the annual audit report.

On 27 February 2006, the Guarantors requested the Company to extend the First Profit Guarantee Period to 31

March 2007. According to the audited financial statements of Kenitic for the year ended 31 March 2005 and the

9-month period ended 31 December 2005, Kenitic incurred losses during the said 21-month period. Although the

audited financial statements for Kenitic for the year ended 31 March 2006 was not available up to the date of the

issuance of the audited financial statements for the 9-month period ended 31 December 2005 of the Group, the

directors are of the view that it is possible that the results for the First Profit Guarantee Period may not be able to

satisfy the Guaranteed Amount. Accordingly, the Board of Directors will monitor the situation closely and (if it is

concluded that there is any shortfall) will enter into negotiation with the Guarantors on how the Guarantors would

perform their obligations. As Mr. Tang is a substantial shareholder of Kenitic and is deemed to be a connected

person under the Listing Rules, an appropriate announcement will be made at due course if there are further

development in this issue.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Business segments

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting and management purposes, the Group has
determined that business segments are its primary reporting format and geographical segments are
its secondary reporting format, with each segment organised and managed separately.

Principal activities are as follows:

Property development : Development of residential property
Trading and retailing : Trading, distribution and retailing of leather products
Healthcare and medical-related services : Provision for healthcare and medical-related services

The Group’s inter-segment transactions were mainly related to sales of leather handbags and finished
leather. Terms of sales were similar to those contracted with third parties. Activities included in
Corporate have been re-defined in this period for the purpose of better evaluating the performance of
segment results.

Segment information about these business is presented below.

Period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005

Healthcare
and medical-

Property Trading and related
development retailing services Corporate Elimination Total

 HK$’000  HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Segment revenue
External customers – 72,024 1,565 – – 73,589
Inter-segments – – – 180 (180) –

– 72,024 1,565 180 (180) 73,589

Segment results (23) (8,603) (4,968) (5,586) (276) (19,456)

Finance costs (295)
Impairment loss on

intangible assets (30,160)
Share of results of associates 86,140

Profit before taxation 36,229
Taxation (44)

Profit for the period 36,185

Segment assets 73,923 49,322 57,311 684,447 (118,584) 746,419

Segment liabilities (73,946) (102,501) (59,706) (596,833) 694,371 (138,615)

Other segment information
Capital expenditure – 2,133 226 1,253 – 3,612
Depreciation and amortisation – 1,361 607 105 – 2,073
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment – 28 – – – 28
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2005:

Healthcare

and medical-

Trading and related

retailing services Corporate Elimination Total

 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Segment revenue

External customers 199,018 8,089 – – 207,107

Inter-segments – – – – –

199,018 8,089 – – 207,107

Segment results (320) (4,928) (9,723) – (14,971)

Finance costs (943)

Loss on disposal of interests

in subsidiaries (26,956)

Impairment loss on

intangible assets (71,141)

Share of results of associates 5,299

Loss before taxation (108,712)

Taxation 91

Loss for the year (108,621)

Segment assets 46,627 12,920 1,259,922 (700,524) 618,945

Segment liabilities (92,763) (8,164) (590,731) 619,489 (72,169)

Other segment information

Capital expenditure 694 – 556,000 – 556,694

Depreciation and amortisation 2,418 728 5 – 3,151

Impairment loss on property,

plant and equipment 7,300 – – – 7,300

Gain on disposal of

– Property, plant and equipment (5,605) – – – (5,605)

– Investment property (1,650) – – – (1,650)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China and Australia.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the

geographical location of customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure are based on the

geographical location of the assets.

Other regions in the

Hong Kong Macau People’s Republic of China Australia Others

Period from Period from Period from Period from Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended 1/4/2005 to Year ended 1/4/2005 to Year ended 1/4/2005 to Year ended 1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005 31/12/2005 31/3/2005 31/12/2005 31/3/2005 31/12/2005 31/3/2005 31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 K$’000

Revenue from external

customers 47,804 103,977 475 – 24,279 95,490 9 177 1,022 7,463

Segment assets 81,495 80,116 73,923 – 591,001 538,213 – – – 616

Capital expenditure 3,210 42,694 – – 402 514,000 – – – –

Total

Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenue from external customers 73,589 207,107

Segment assets 746,419 618,945

Capital expenditure 3,612 556,694
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7. FINANCE COSTS

The Group

Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings

wholly repayable within five years 63 873

Interest on other loans 114 45

Finance charges on obligations under finance leases 14 25

191 943

Loan interest capitalized 534 –

8. SHARE OF RESULTS OF ASSOCIATES

Hotel Golden Dragon (Macao) Company Limited

Pursuant to the Provisional Sale and Purchase Agreement dated 3 January 2005 entered into between

the vendors and Pearl Oriental Macau Limited (the “Purchaser”, a wholly owned subsidiary of the

Company), upon the acquisition of a 40% interest in Hotel Golden Dragon (Macao) Company Limited

(“Hotel Golden Dragon”), the vendors have guaranteed and warranted to the Purchaser that the

audited consolidated net profit after taxation of Hotel Golden Dragon for each of the three years for

the period from 5 January 2005 to 4 January 2008, before the payment of bank loan interest, shall

not be less than HK$200 million (the “Guaranteed Profit”). With reference to the results of the special

audit report dated 24 April 2006 for the Hotel Golden Dragon for the period from 5 January 2005 to 4

January 2006, the directors are satisfied that the Guaranteed Profit for the said period has been

achieved. Details of the agreement and the acquisition were stated in the Company’s circular of 14

March 2005.
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9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
Profit/(Loss) before taxation has been arrived at after (charging)/crediting:

The Group
Period from
1/4/2005 to Year ended
31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

(Charging):
Staff costs

Directors’ remunerations (note 10) (4,135) (4,349)
Staff salaries and allowances (10,681) (11,560)
Reversal of provision for long service payments – 148
Retirement benefits scheme contributions (note 10)

(including directors of HK$54,000; Year ended 31/3/2005:
HK$37,000) (269) (331)

Auditors’ remuneration:
Current period/year (1,589) (1,385)
(Under)/over-provision in previous year (260) 81

(1,849) (1,304)

Cost of inventories (53,296) (176,724)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment:

Assets held for use under finance lease (94) (126)
Assets held for use under operating leases – (94)
Owned assets (1,979) (2,931)

Impairment loss recognised on property, plant and equipment – (7,300)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1) –
Net foreign exchange losses (22) (352)
Decrease in fair value of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss – (96)
Loss on disposal of financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss – (1,271)
Operating lease charges:

Premises (6,421) (2,865)
Property, plant and equipment (29) (59)

Provision for slow-moving inventories (2,155) –
Written off of property, plant and equipment (27) –
Impairment loss on intangible assets (30,160) (71,141)
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (505) –

Crediting:
Bad debts recovered 14 7
Dividend income – 96
Gain on disposal of:

Property, plant and equipment – 5,605
Investment property – 1,650

Rental income under operating leases net of outgoings 534 41
Rental income from other properties under operating leases net

of outgoings – 684
Net realized gain on financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss 2 –
Unrealized gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 24 –
Written back of provision for doubtful debts 60 –
Gain on exchange difference 28 –
Reversal of provision for long service payments 47 –
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS
Period from
1/4/2005 to Year ended
31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Other emoluments (executive directors):
Salaries and other benefits (Note 9) 4,081 4,312
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme (Note 9) 54 37

4,135 4,349

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is
as follows:

Salaries, Period from
allowances Retirement 1/4/2005 to

Directors’ and benefits Share-based scheme 31/12/2005
fees in kind payments contributions Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Executive directors

Law Kar Po – – – – –
Lee Sam Yuen, John 2,231 – – 37 2,268
Law Wing Yee, Wendy – 405 – 9 414
Lee Siu Yuk, Eliza – 530 – 8 538
Chiang Pedro – – – – –
Hoi Man Pak – – – – –
Ung Choi Kun – – – – –
Wu Ka I, Miguel 500 – – – 500
Wong Yuk Kwan – – – – –

Non-executive directors

Chui Sai Cheong 83 – – – 83
Wong Wing Hon, Aflonso – – – – –
Leonel Alberto Alves 83 – – – 83

Independent non-executive directors

Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse 83 – – – 83
Lau Wai Ming 83 – – – 83
Wong King Lam, Joseph 83 – – – 83
Ha Kee Choy, Eugene – – – – –
Ng Kai Man, Luke – – – – –
Chan Nim Leung, Leon – – – – –

3,146 935 – 54 4,135
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS (Continued)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Year ended

Directors’ and benefits Share-based scheme 31/3/2005
fees in kind payments contributions Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Executive directors

Wong Yuk Kwan – – – – –
Law Kar Po – – – – –
Lee Sam Yuen, John – 3,000 27 24 3,051
Law Wing Yee, Wendy – 245 – 7 252
Lee Siu Yuk, Eliza – 240 – 6 246
Stephen William Callister – – – – –
Ng Fung Ying – – – – –
Ng Hoi Chun – – – – –

Non-executive directors

Sun Ping Hsu, Samson – – – – –
Wong Wing Hon, Alfonso 200 – – – 200

Independent non-executive directors

Lo Ming Chi, Charles – – – – –
Wong Kwok Tai – – – – –
Chan Nim Leung, Leon 200 – – – 200
Ng Kai Man, Luke 200 – – – 200
Ha Kee Choy, Eugene 200 – – – 200

800 3,485 27 37 4,349

During the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005, no emoluments were paid by the Group to

the directors as a discretionary bonus or any inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

for the current or prior years.

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of HK$250,000 (Year ended 31 March 2005:

HK$600,000) and HK$166,000 (Year ended 31 March 2005: HK$200,000) paid to the independent

non-executive directors and the non-executive directors respectively during the period/year.
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11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

During the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005, the five highest paid individuals included

three (Year ended 31 March 2005: one) directors of the Company, details of whose emoluments are

set out above. The emoluments of the remaining two (Year ended 31 March 2005: four) highest paid

individuals were as follows:

Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries and other benefits 2,250 4,713

Contributions to retirement benefits scheme – 44

2,250 4,757

The emoluments of the two (Year ended 31 March 2005: four) individuals with the highest emoluments

are within the following bands:

Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 – 3

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2 –

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 – 1

2 4

During the period, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the individual as a discretionary bonus

or an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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12. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS

The Group

Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Contributions:

Hong Kong subsidiaries (Note a) 165 316

Overseas subsidiaries (Note b) 104 15

269 331

Note:

(a) The Group operates a pension scheme under the rules and regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund

Schemes Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”). The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately in an independently

managed fund. The Group has followed the minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5% of eligible

employees’ relevant aggregate income or HK$12,000 per annum, whichever is lower. The contributions

are charged to the income statement as incurred.

(b) The employees of overseas subsidiaries are members of the central pension schemes operated by the

governments of the countries in which they operate. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a

certain percentage of their payroll to the central pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation

of the Group with respect to the central pension schemes is the payment of the required contributions

under the central pension schemes.



Notes to the Financial Statements

60

Honesty Treasure
International

Holdings Limited

Annual Report 200531 December 2005

13. TAXATION

Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Hong Kong profits tax Current period/year 44 –

Deferred tax (Note 32)

Credit for the period/year – (91)

44 (91)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (Year ended 31 March 2005: 17.5%)

on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the period. Taxation on overseas

profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the period at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Reconciliation of the taxation charge/(credit) and accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rate:

Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 36,229 (108,712)

Notional tax on profit/(loss) before tax of 17.5% 6,340 (19,025)

Tax effect of:

– non-deductible expenses 5,549 21,331

– non-taxable income (15,154) (4,642)

– previous tax utilized in current period/year 47 –

– unused tax losses arise in current period/year 1,735 1,986

– unrecognised tax loss 1,380 1,673

– difference in tax rates in other countries 60 (146)

– temporary differences recognized 44 –

– unrecognised temporary differences 43 (1,268)

Total tax charge/(credit) for the period/year 44 (91)

There was no material unprovided deferred tax for the period (year ended 31 March 2005: Nil).
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14. NET PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the parent includes a loss of

HK$3,674,000 (Year ended 31 March 2005: loss of HK$68,380,000) which has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company.

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share based on the share capital of the Company

are as follows:

Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Earnings/(Loss) (HK$’000) 38,399 (108,308)

Number of shares in calculating basic earnings/(loss) per share 2,159,147,974 1,224,296,914

Period from

1/4/2005 to

31/12/2005

HK$’000

Number of shares in calculating diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose

of calculating the basic earnings per share 2,159,147,974

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares on

conversion of warrants 140,775,401

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of

calculating the dilutive earnings per share 2,299,923,375

Diluted loss per share is not presented as the Company has no dilutive potential shares as at 31

March 2005.

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Group

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Valuation

At 1 April – 3,700

Disposal during the year ended 31 March 2005 – (3,700)

At 31 December/March – –
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group

Furniture

and Office Plant and Motor Leasehold

Buildings fixtures equipment machinery vehicles improvement Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At Cost

At 1 April 2005 12,597 994 4,109 13,337 3,201 5,458 39,696

Addition 144 588 1,131 – 408 1,177 3,448

Disposal – – (137) – (270) – (407)

At 31 December 2005 12,741 1,582 5,103 13,337 3,339 6,635 42,737

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment charge

At 1 April 2005 1,783 915 2,464 8,549 1,428 3,028 18,167

Charge for the period 270 71 502 172 401 657 2,073

Eliminated on disposal – – (136) – (243) – (379)

Exchange alignment (105) (1) – (41) – – (147)

At 31 December 2005 1,948 985 2,830 8,680 1,586 3,685 19,714

Impairment

At 1 April 2005 and

31 December 2005 7,300 – – – – – 7,300

Net book value

At 31 December 2005 3,493 597 2,273 4,657 1,753 2,950 15,723

At 31 March 2005 3,514 79 1,645 4,788 1,773 2,430 14,229



Notes to the Financial Statements
Honesty Treasure
International
Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2005

63

31 December 2005

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

Furniture

and Office Plant and Motor Leasehold

Buildings fixtures equipment machinery vehicles improvement Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At Cost

At 1 April 2004 66,656 994 2,623 14,302 2,496 8,266 95,337

Addition – – 1,032 – 873 2,518 4,423

Disposal (54,059) – (145) (965) (168) (5,489) (60,826)

Acquisition of subsidiaries – – 599 – – 163 762

At 31 March 2005 12,597 994 4,109 13,337 3,201 5,458 39,696

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment charge

At 1 April 2004 28,497 881 2,209 8,985 1,121 7,336 49,029

Charge for the period 1,110 34 383 511 475 638 3,151

Eliminated on disposal (27,824) – (128) (947) (168) (4,946) (34,013)

At 31 March 2005 1,783 915 2,464 8,549 1,428 3,028 18,167

Impairment

At 1 April 2004 – – – – – – –

Addition 7,300 – – – – – 7,300

At 31 March 2005 7,300 – – – – – 7,300

Net book value

At 31 March 2005 3,514 79 1,645 4,788 1,773 2,430 14,229

At 31 March 2004 38,159 113 414 5,317 1,375 930 46,308

The net book value of buildings held by the Group at the balance sheet date shown above comprised

of:

The Group

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Outside Hong Kong:

Medium-term leases 3,493 3,514
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment include gross amount of HK$20,374,000 (31 March 2005:

HK$17,432,702), accumulated depreciation of HK$6,121,000 (31 March 2005: HK$6,625,305) and

accumulated impairment losses of HK$7,300,000 (31 March 2005: HK$7,300,000) in respect of

assets held for use under operating leases.

The net book value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment includes an amount of HK$610,000

(31 March 2005: HK$696,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

The Company

Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

Office Office

equipment equipment

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost

At 1 April 2005 65,500 65,500

Disposal (65,500) –

At 31 December 2005 – 65,500

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2005 65,500 65,500

Eliminated on disposal (65,500) –

At 31 December 2005 – 65,500

Net book value

At 31 December 2005 and 31 March 2005 – –

18. PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The Group

HK$’000

Balance at 1 April 2005 –

Cost of acquisition of land during the period 69,400

Other incidental expenses capitalized during the period 3,331

Balance for the period ended 72,731

The land is held in Macau with freehold feature and it is pledged as a security for bank loans as

detailed in note 26(a).



Notes to the Financial Statements
Honesty Treasure
International
Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2005

65

31 December 2005

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The Company

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted shares, at cost 2,100 44,100

Due from subsidiaries 685,242 619,139

Provision for bad and doubtful debts (117,728) (117,728)

567,514 501,411

569,614 545,511

Loan to a subsidiary 8,400 –

The amounts due from subsidiaries and loan to a subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and have no

fixed repayment term.

Details of the principal subsidiaries at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Country of Percentage of equity

incorporation/ interest held in

registration and Class of issued capital/

Name operation share held registered capital Principal activities

Directly Indirectly

China HealthCare Limited Hong Kong 6,600,000 – 100% Investment holding

ordinary shares

of HK$1 each

China Hifu Tumor Treatment Hong Kong 6,000,000 – 100% Leasing of Tumor

and Medical Co., Limited ordinary shares cure systems

of HK$1 each

Healthforce Inc. The British 1 ordinary share – 100% Investment holding

Virgin Island of US$1 each

 (“BVI”)

Chongqing Hai Jian Medical The People’s RMB1,000,000 – 100%@ Rendering services on

Technology Co., Limited Republic medical-related and

of China healthcare facilities

Kenitic Innovation Limited # Hong Kong 3,100,000 – 51% Trading of medical

ordinary shares health equipments

of HK$1 each and health products

Star Palace Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 3,000,000 70% – Retailing business

ordinary shares and commenced its

of HK$1 each business on 6 April 2005
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Country of Percentage of equity

incorporation/ interest held in

registration and Class of issued capital/

Name operation share held registered capital Principal activities

Directly Indirectly

Star Palace Macao Limited Macau Registered capital – 100% Retailing business

MOP 25,000 and commenced its

business on 14

October 2005

MOCCA Group Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share – 100% Investment holding

of HK$1 each

Pearl Oriental Macau Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% – Investment holding

of HK$1 each

Canasta Overseas BVI 1 ordinary share 100% – Investment holding

Group Limited of US$1 each

Prospect Sync Holdings BVI 1 ordinary share 100% – Investment holding

Limited of US$1 each

Dah Hwa Leather & Hong Kong 5,000 ordinary shares – 50% Investment holding and

Trading Co., Limited # of HK$100 each trading of finished

leather

Guangdong Faith Hong Kong 2,280,000 – 50% Investment holding

Investment Limited # ordinary shares

of HK$1 each

Inter Leather Limited # Hong Kong 100,000 – 50% Inactive (formerly trading

ordinary shares of leather bags)

of HK$1 each

Pathway International BVI 1 ordinary share 50% – Investment holding

Limited # of US$1 each

Da Ya Leather Company PRC US$700,000 – 80% Processing of finished

Limited # leather

Zhong Da Handbag PRC HK$8,260,000 – 60% Manufacture of

Company Limited # leatherware accessories
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Country of Percentage of equity

incorporation/ interest held in

registration and Class of issued capital/

Name operation share held registered capital Principal activities

Directly Indirectly

Honesty Services Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% – Holding of motor vehicle

of HK$1 each

Honesty Treasure Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% – Provision of management

of HK$1 each service

Parsinno International Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% – Investment holding

Limited of HK$1 each

Son Pou Real Estate Macau Registered capital – 51% Property under

Company Limited MOP 100,000 development

@ wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the PRC to be operated for 20 years up to 10 December

2022.

# Companies not audited by CCIF CPA Limited.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally

affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Group

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

(Re-stated)

HK$’000 HK$’000

(Note)

Unlisted shares, at cost – –

Share of net assets 606,349 520,209

606,349 520,209

Note:

The fair value of Hotel Golden Dragon as at 31 March 2005 was re-assessed, it was approximately the same as

the consideration paid for the acquisition by the Group. Hence, there was no goodwill recognised for the acquisition

of the Hotel Golden Dragon.

Details of the principal associates at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Percentage of

Country of equity interest

incorporation/ held in

registration and Class of registered

Name operation share held capital indirectly Principal activities

Hotel Golden Dragon Macau Registered capital 40% Operation of hotel

(Macao) Company Limited # MOP1,000,000

Sunny Tourist & Macau Registered capital 24% Provision for tourism

Entertainment MOP100,000 and related service

Company Limited #

# Companies not audited by CCIF CPA Limited

The key consolidated financial information of the associates is as follows:

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current assets 589,036 556,640

Current assets 195,520 80,473

Non-current liabilities (397,978) (217,093)

Current liabilities (149,292) (409,222)
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Period from

1/4/2005 to Year ended

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 329,150 67,257

Net profit after taxation 185,587 13,470

Note:

During the period, the increase in interests in associates during the period included the share of increase in fair

value of hotel properties of Hotel Golden Dragon by approximately HK$19 million.

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The amounts of the goodwill capitalised as assets in the consolidated balance sheet, arising from the

acquisition of subsidiaries are as follows:

Goodwill

arising on

acquisition of

the subsidiaries

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 April 2005/2004 30,160 53,994

Acquisition during the year – 47,307

Impairment loss for the period/year (30,160) (71,141)

At 31 December 2005/31 March 2005 – 30,160

22. INVENTORIES

The Group

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Raw materials 528 732

Work in progress 226 742

Finished goods and merchandise 11,581 17,378

12,335 18,852

The amount of inventories, included in above, carried at net realisable value is HK$8,329,000

(31 March 2005: HK$16,468,000).
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

All trade receivables are expected to be recovered within 30 to 60 days with credit term under the

Group’s policy. Included in trade receivables are trade debtors (net of specific allowances for bad and

doubtful debts) with the following ageing analysis:

The Group

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade receivables

Due

Within 30 days 3,209 5,795

31 – 60 days 2,481 5,159

61 – 90 days 864 1,284

Over 90 days 1,274 656

7,828 12,894

Other receivables 11,035 9,731

18,863 22,625

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

The Group

Financial

 assets at fair

value through Short-term

profit or loss investments

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Listed shares in Hong Kong, at fair value 66 52
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade payable are trade creditors with the following ageing:

The Group

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade payables

Due

Within 30 days 1,164 1,100

31 – 60 days 638 1,049

61 – 90 days 200 2,546

Over 90 days 285 242

2,287 4,937

Other payables 23,753 19,739

26,040 24,676

26. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

The Group

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Bank loans, secured (a) 37,200 –

Trust receipt loans, secured 2,588 7,744

Loan notes (b) 1,461 1,400

Other loans 15,000 –

56,249 9,144

Current portion 56,249 9,144

Non-current portion – –

56,249 9,144

(a) The interest rate on secured bank loans is charged on the outstanding balance at prime rate

less 1% per annum.

(b) The outstanding balance of HK$1,461,000 is mature during the period and interest is charged

at 2.5% per annum.
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

(c) The maturity of the above interest-bearing borrowings are as follows:

Interest-bearing borrowings:

Loan notes and Trust receipt loans and

 other loans bank loans, secured

31/12/2005 31/3/2005 31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 16,461 1,400 39,788 7,744

In the second to fifth years – – – –

16,461 1,400 39,788 7,744

27. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES, DIRECTORS AND MINORITY
SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due to related companies, directors and minority shareholders were unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

28. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

The Group

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 April 1,928 2,234

Utilized for the period/year (947) (158)

Reversal of overprovision for the period/year (47) (148)

At 31 December 2005/31 March 2005 934 1,928
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29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE
Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments

31/12/2005 31/3/2005 31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Amount payable:

Within one year 272 349 253 325

In the second to fifth years 69 260 64 242

341 609 317 567

Future finance charges (24) (42) – –

Present value of lease obligations 317 567 317 567

Current portion 253 325

Non-current portion 64 242

317 567

30. ISSUED CAPITAL

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

Number of Number of

shares HK$’000 shares HK$’000

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of

HK$0.05 each 5,000,000,000 250,000 5,000,000,000 250,000

Number of

ordinary shares of Nominal

Note HK$0.05 each value

HK$’000

Issued and fully paid:

At 31 March 2004 1,078,022,840 53,901

Issue of shares (a) 455,000,000 22,750

Placing (b) 437,600,000 21,880

At 31 March 2005 1,970,622,840 98,531

Placing (c) 60,000,000 3,000

Issued of new shares at

premium (d) 400,200,000 20,010

At 31 December 2005 2,430,822,840 121,541
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30. ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

(a) (1) Pursuant to the Circular dated 17 May 2004, the Company had entered into the sale and purchase

agreement in relating to the acquisition of 44% equity interest in Kenitic Innovation Limited, a

subsidiary, for a consideration of HK$42 million, which will be satisfied as to (a) HK$20 million in

cash and (b) HK$22 million by an issue and allotment of 110,000,000 new Shares by the Company.

(2) Pursuant to the announcement dated 14 March 2005, the Company acquired the 40% equity

shareholdings of Hotel Golden Dragon (Macao) Limited, an associate, at a consideration of: (a)

HK$238 million in cash; and (b) HK$276 million in allotment and issue of the Company’s shares, in

totalling of HK$514 million. Then, it issued 345 million new ordinary shares at issue price of

HK$0.80 each.

(b) (1) On 21 December 2004, the Company and the placing agent entered into the placing agreement

pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to place 237,600,000 placing shares on a fully written

basis to not less than six independent professional, institutional and/or individual investors at a

price of HK$0.27 per placing share.

(2) Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 7 January 2005, Mr. Law Kar Po, the executive

director of the Company, had conditionally agreed to subscribe for 200,000,000 new shares at the

subscription price of HK$1.00 per share. At the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 24 March

2005, it passed the ordinary resolutions approving the connected transaction in relation to the

proposed subscription of 200,000,000 new shares following the placing HK$200,000,000 existing

shares.

(c) Pursuant to the written resolution dated 4 July 2005, the company entered into a placing agreement to

issue of 60,000,000 new shares (the “placing shares”) of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the company at

the price of HK$0.35 per placing share and 225,000,000 warrants, carrying the rights to subscribe for

new Shares at a subscription price of HK$0.35 per Share (subject to adjustment) until 20 July 2007, at the

price of HK$0.022 per warrant to the placing agent.

There is no exercise of warrants since their issue.

(d) Reference was made to the circular of the company dated 25 August 2005. It was noted that the

company had entered into the supplemental agreement dated 14 July 2005 made between the company,

the purchaser, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the company, and the vendors with regards to the settlement

of the shortfall of HK$140,070,000 by the issue of 400,200,000 shares at an agreed price of HK$0.35 per

share.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution of the extraordinary general meeting dated 12 September 2005, the

company issued of 400,200,000 new shares according to the supplemental agreement. The new shares

were issued to rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing shares.
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31. RESERVES

The Company

Capital
Share redemption Warrant Translation Accumulated Consolidated

premium reserve reserve reserve losses total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 April 2004 150,196 69 – – (146,802) 3,463
Issue of shares at premium

(Note 30(a) & (b)) 510,599 – – – – 510,599
Net loss for the year – – – – (68,380) (68,380)

At 31 March 2005 660,795 69 – – (215,182) 445,682
Issue of shares at premium

(Note 30(c)) 17,410 – – – – 17,410
Capitalization of share

premium (Note 30(d)) (20,010) – – – – (20,010)
Expenses on capitalization

of premium (320) – – – – (320)
Issue of warrants (Note 30(c)) – – 4,950 – – 4,950
Net loss for the period – – – – (3,674) (3,674)
Reduction of share

premium transferred to
accumulated losses (218,856) – – – 218,856 –

At 31 December 2005 439,019 69 4,950 – – 444,038

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of
its Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided that immediately following the distribution or
dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant to the minutes of a directors’ meeting held on 31 December 2005, an amount of approximately
HK$218,856,000 was transferred from share premium account to offset the accumulated losses of
the Company at 31 December 2005.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent the share premium and retained profits.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, share premium of the Company is available for
paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or
Articles of Associations and provided that immediately following the distribution or dividend the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. As at 31
December 2005, the aggregate value of the share premium and retained profits of the Company
available for distribution is HK$439,019,000 (31 March 2005: HK$445,613,000).

Reserves:

(a) Share premium represents the excess of consideration over par value of shares issued.

(b) Capital redemption reserve represents nominal value of shares repurchased out of distributable
profits.
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32. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED

At the balance sheet date, the major components of the unprovided deferred tax assets are as

follows:

The Group

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Excess of tax allowances over depreciation (93) (474)

Other temporary differences:

– provision for bad and doubtful debts – 1,203

Tax losses carried forward 131,750 128,778

131,657 129,507

The Company

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tax losses carried forward 4,405 4,405

At the balance sheet date and for the period, no deferred tax assets has been recognised in relation

to the deductible temporary differences and tax losses as it is not probable that taxable profit will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. The

Group’s tax losses of approximately HK$7,389,000 (31 March 2005: HK$7,129,000) and

HK$124,362,000 (31 March 2005: HK$121,649,000) will expire within one to four years and do not

expire respectively. The tax losses of the Company do not expire under current tax legislation.

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities (31 March 2005: Nil).

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the following transactions

with related parties during the period:

(a) Mr. Lee Sam Yuen, John, a director and Mrs. Lee Shiao Yu Cho, a close family member of Mr.

Lee Sam Yuen John, provided a personal guarantee of HK$100 million (31 March 2005:

HK$100 million) to a bank to secure general banking facilities granted to a subsidiary, for

which no charge is made;
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) The Group has leased certain properties from D.H. International Limited (“D.H. International”),

a related company owned by a foundation of which Mrs. Lee Shiao Yu Cho and Mr. Lee Sam

Yuen, John are beneficiaries, at an aggregate monthly rental of HK$107,000. Total rental paid

during the period and deposit paid were amounting to HK$963,000 (31 March 2005:

HK$872,000) and HK$218,000 (31 March 2005: HK$218,000) respectively.

In addition to the above, D.H. International has provided all monies mortgage over six properties

held and an assignment of the insurance policy over those properties to a bank to secure

general banking facilities granted to a subsidiary of the Company.

(c) On 30 May, 2005, a subsidiary of the Company as a tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement

with Precision Advance Limited which is owned as to approximately 33.3% by Mr. Law Kar Po,

a director and substantial shareholder of the Company, and as to approximately 66.7% by Mr.

Law’s relatives. The monthly rental and other related expenses is about HK$180,000 and

HK$7,187 respectively. The total rental expenses and related expenses paid for the period

from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005 amounting to HK$1,075,962.

(d) On 1 October 2004, Well Team Development Limited, which is wholly owned by Mr. Wong Yuk

Kwan, an ex-director of the Company, and has common directors of Mr. Wong Yuk Kwan and

Ms. Lee Siu Yuk, Eliza, the executive director, had entered into a tenancy agreement with a

subsidiary. The total rental expenses paid for the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December

2005 amounting to HK$442,667.

35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

(a) The Group leased out certain buildings and part of office under operating lease with average

lease terms of 2 to 4 years. At 31 December 2005, the Group had total future minimum lease

receivable under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 781 879

In the second to fifth years 434 1,020

1,215 1,899
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35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT (Continued)

(b) At 31 December 2005, the Group had total outstanding commitments for future minimum lease

payable under non-cancellable operating lease in respect of properties, plant and equipment

which fall due as follows:

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 14,736 5,468

In the second to fifth years 12,731 5,344

27,467 10,812

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

31/12/2005 31/3/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant

and equipment

– contracted but not provided for 2,603 2,603

– authorised but not contracted for 49,070 49,070

51,673 51,673

37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, property under development of the Group amounting to HK$72,731,000

(31 March 2005: Nil) was pledged to secure general bank facilities.
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38. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a) On 22 February 2006, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a placing agent for

a placing of not more than 400 million new shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.148 per

share. The placing was completed on 31 March 2006 and 400 million new shares were issued

to independent third parties not connected with the Company or its connected persons.

(b) On 28 February 2006, the Company announced that a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

entered into a binding letter of intent dated 20 February 2006 with vendors who were Mr.

Pedro Chiang, Mr. Law Kar Po, Mr. Wu Ka I, Miguel, Ms. Leong Lai Heng, Mr. Hoi Man Pak

and Mr. Choy Wang Kong in respect of the acquisition of 55% of the issued quota and

shareholders’ loans of Companhia De Investimento E Desenvolvimento Continental Ocean

Limitada (in English “Continental Ocean Investment and Development Company Limited”)

(“CIDCOL”). CIDCOL is a company incorporated in Macau on 7 October 2005 and its only

material asset is a development site located in Lote TN6, Taipa, Macau. The consideration of

the acquisition was approximately HK$91.1 million and was satisfied by the issue of convertible

notes by the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.148 per share. The vendors, other than

Mr. Choy Wang Kong, are directors or their associates of the Company. The acquisition

constituted a major and connected transaction of the Company and the independent

shareholders of the Company approved the acquisition in an extraordinary general meeting of

the Company held on 7 April 2006.

(c) Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 24 April 2006, the Board proposed a conditional

bonus warrant issue to the shareholders on the basis of one warrant for every ten shares of the

Company. The initial subscription price was determined at HK$0.26 per share, subject to

adjustment, and the bonus warrants are exercisable at any time during the period which is

expected to commence on 7 June 2006 and end on 6 June 2009 (if that day is not a business

day, the business day immediately preceding that day) (both days inclusive).
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest bearing borrowings and cash and bank

deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.

The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as account receivable and accounts

payable, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risks, foreign exchange

risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of there

risks and they are summarized below.

Interest rate risks

The Group is exposed to interest rate risks due to changes in interest rates of interest-bearing

financial assets and liabilities. Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly deposits with banks which

are mostly short term in nature whereas interest-bearing financial liabilities are primarily short term

bank borrowings with primarily floating interest rates. The Group is therefore exposed to both fair

value and cash flow interest rate risks. The Group’s policy is to obtain the most favourable interest

rates available without increasing its foreign currency exposure.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in mainland China and Hong Kong and is exposed to foreign exchange

risk arising from Renminbi currency exposures, primarily with respect to the Hong Kong dollars.

Foreign exchange risks arises from future commercial transactions, recoginsed assets and liabilities

and net investments in foreign operations. The risk management policy is to have the liquid assets

mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

The Group has operations in mainland China where the net assets are exposed to foreign currency

translation risk. The Group’s currency exposure with respect to these operations is mainly fro Renminbi

and Hong Kong dollars.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The accounts and other receivables represent the Group’s major exposure to the credit risk arising

from the default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of

these financial assets in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group has no significant concentration

of credit risk with respect to retail as it has a large number of diversified customers. With respect to

the trading business and medical-related business, the Group trades only with recognised and

creditworthy third parties. The Groups seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables

and has a credit control development to minimize credit risk. In addition, all receivable balances are

monitored on an ongoing basis and overdue balances are followed up by senior management.

Accordingly, the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains level of cash and cash equivalents

deemed adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of

fluctuation in cash flows. The Group’s treasury department’s responsibility is maintaining a balance

between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank facilities in order to meet its

liquidity requirements both in the short and long terms. All debts of the Group would mature in less

than one year as at 31 December 2005.

40. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

With a review of financial statements presentation, certain items in the financial statements were

reclassified which would result in a more appropriate presentation of events or transactions. Accordingly,

comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current period’s presentation.
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Results
For the period

from
1/4/2005 to For the year ended 31 March
31/12/2005 2005 2004 2003 2002

(Re-stated)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 73,589 207,107 207,902 154,726 174,889

Profit/(Loss) from operations (19,560) (41,927) 508 (13,803) (47,611)
Finance costs (191) (943) (999) (2,420) (3,756)
Share of results of associates 86,140 5,299 – – (31,942)
Impairment loss recognised on

goodwill arising from
acquisition of subsidiaries/an
associate (30,160) (71,141) – – (16,824)

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 36,229 (108,712) (491) (16,223) (100,133)
Taxation (44) 91 – – (1,283)

Net profit/(loss) from ordinary
activities for the period/year 36,185 (108,621) (491) (16,223) (101,416)

Minority interests 2,214 313 – 222 196

Net profit/(loss) attributable to
shareholders 38,399 (108,308) (491) (16,001) (101,220)

Dividends – – – – –

Basic earnings/(loss) per share 1.78 cents (8.85 cents ) (0.06 cents) (2.11 cents ) (13.74 cents )

Assets and Liabilities
As at As at 31 March

31/12/2005 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Re-stated)

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

ASSETS
Investment property – – 3,700 3,400 3,550
Property, plant and equipment 15,723 14,229 46,307 45,619 49,751
Property under development 72,731 – – – –
Interests in associates 606,349 520,209 910 – –
Other investments – – 7,000 – –
Intangible assets – 30,160 53,994 – –
Current assets 51,616 54,347 61,739 78,814 104,438

Total assets 746,419 618,945 173,650 127,833 157,739

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 137,617 69,999 42,846 48,019 62,512
Non-current liabilities 998 2,170 31,516 14,442 13,994
Deferred taxation – – – – –

Total liabilities 138,615 72,169 74,362 62,461 76,506
Minority interests 397 2,563 349 349 571

139,012 74,732 74,711 62,810 77,077

NET ASSETS 607,407 544,213 98,939 65,023 80,662


